

**COUNCIL MEETING
JUNE 6, 2017**

Mayor Casavant called the meeting to order at 6:00 p.m.

Roll Call: Michael Swanton, John McCurry, Jr., Stephen St. Cyr, Robert Quattrone, Jr., Bob Mills, Michael Ready, Laura Seaver, Marc Lessard

Norman Belanger was excused.

The Council, and all who were present, recited the Pledge of Allegiance.

Adjustment to the Agenda:

Add: Consideration of LaKermesse Request to Waive City Licensing Fees

Recognition: Newly Hired Police Officers

Chief Roger Beaupre presented newly hired Police Officers Peter Gilman, Justin Lavertue and Devon Spates. On May 19th, Officers Gilman, Lavertue and Spates graduated from the Maine Criminal Justice Academy. After completion of their field training with the Biddeford Police Department, they will be assigned to the patrol division's third shift.

Presentation: Biddeford Historical Society

Louise Merriman, a member of the Biddeford Historical Society, introduced the newly launched website for the Biddeford Historical Society and she encouraged folks to check it out and also to get involved the Fireside Chats that are scheduled throughout the year.

Consideration of Minutes: **May 16, 2017; May 18, 2017; May 24, 2017**

Motion by Councilor Ready, seconded by Councilor McCurry to accept the minutes as printed.

Vote: Unanimous.

Consideration of LaKermesse Request to Waive City Licensing Fees

Motion by Councilor McCurry, seconded by Councilor Mills to waive all licensing and permitting fees, as set by City ordinance, for LaKermesse Franco-Americaine.

Motion by Councilor Mills, seconded by Councilor St. Cyr to allow Councilor Quattrone to abstain from this vote due to the fact that his wife is the President of the LaKermesse organization.

Vote: 4/4; Councilors Lessard, Seaver, Ready and McCurry opposed.

Councilor Swanton, St. Cyr, Quattrone and Mills in favor.

Point of order called by Councilor Lessard, who stated that the Mayor could not vote to break the tie because the final vote had been called.

Motion by Councilor McCurry, seconded by Councilor Mills to reconsider the previous motion.

Vote: 5/3; Councilors Lessard, Seaver and Ready opposed.

Councilors Swanton, McCurry, St. Cyr, Quattrone and Mills in favor.

Motion carries.

Motion by Councilor Mills, seconded by Councilor St. Cyr to allow Councilor Quattrone to abstain from this vote due to the fact that his wife is the President of the LaKermesse organization.

Vote: 4/4; Councilors Lessard, Seaver, Ready and McCurry opposed.

Councilor Swanton, St. Cyr, Quattrone and Mills in favor.

Mayor Casavant voted in favor to allow the abstention.

Vote on waiver of licensing and permitting fees: 3/4; Councilors Lessard, Ready and Seaver and St. Cyr opposed.

Councilors Swanton, McCurry and Mills in favor.

Request is denied.

Second Readings:

{For a copy of the ordinance amendments and first readings, see the Council Meeting minutes of May 16, 2017}

2017.39) Amendment/Ch. 42, Motor Vehicles & Traffic/Sec. 42-90-No Parking/Add on Summit Street

Motion by Councilor Mills, seconded by Councilor Swanton to grant the second reading of the ordinance amendment.

Motion by Councilor McCurry, seconded by Councilor Mills to amend the ordinance by reverting back to the originally proposed language to institute no parking on both sides of the street.

Vote: 4/4; Councilors Swanton, St. Cyr, Mills and Lessard opposed.

Councilors McCurry, Quattrone, Ready and Seaver in favor.

Mayor Casavant voted in opposition to break the tie.

Vote on ordinance, as revised: 5/3; Councilors Seaver, Ready and McCurry opposed.

Councilors Swanton, St. Cyr, Quattrone, Mills and Lessard in favor.

Motion carries.

2017.50) Amendment/Ch. 42, Motor Vehicles & Traffic/Sec. 42-64-Fees for parking violations/Fee Increases

Motion by Councilor Lessard, seconded by Councilor Mills to grant the second reading of the ordinance amendment.

Vote: 6/2; Councilors Seaver and Ready opposed.

Councilors Swanton, McCurry, St. Cyr, Quattrone, Mills and Lessard in favor.

Motion carries.

2017.51) Amendment/Ch. 42, Motor Vehicles & Traffic/Sec. 42-92.1-Waiver of parking fees under specific circumstances/Delete Entire Section

Motion by Councilor Ready, seconded by Councilor Mills to grant the second reading of the ordinance amendment.

Vote: 7/1; Councilor Swanton opposed.

Councilors McCurry, St. Cyr, Quattrone, Mills, Ready, Seaver and Lessard in favor.

Motion carries.

2017.52) Amendment/Ch. 18, Buildings and Building Regulations/Sec. 18-61-Permit fee schedule/Increase Construction Permit Fee; and Sec. 18-158-Electrical Permit Fees/Add Administrative Fees

Motion by Councilor Lessard, seconded by Councilor Mills to grant the second reading of the ordinance amendment.

Vote: 7/1; Councilor Ready opposed.

Councilors Swanton, McCurry, St. Cyr, Quattrone, Mills, Seaver and Lessard in favor.

Motion carries.

2017.53) Amendment/Ch. 42, Motor Vehicles & Traffic/Sec. 42-66-Beach permit parking regulations enumerated/Increase in all beach permit fees

Motion by Councilor Mills, seconded by Councilor Swanton to grant the second reading of the ordinance amendment.

Vote: 6/2; Councilors Ready and Swanton opposed.

Councilors McCurry, St. Cyr, Quattrone, Mills, Seaver and Lessard in favor.

Motion carries.

2017.54) Amendment/Ch. 6, Amusements, Art. IV-Special Events, Sec. 6-143-Permit required/Add Special Event Permit Fees

Motion by Councilor Mills, seconded by Councilor Seaver to grant the second reading of the ordinance amendment.

Vote: Unanimous.

Orders of the Day:

2017.57

IN BOARD OF CITY COUNCIL..JUNE 6, 2017

BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of Biddeford, Maine to amend the Code of Ordinances of the City of Biddeford as follows:

Part III (Land Development Regulations), Article IV (Nonconformance), be amended as follows:

Section 1. Purposes.

The intent of this Zoning Ordinance is to regulate nonconforming lots, uses and structures. This ordinance intends to be realistic so that: nonconforming vacant lots of record can be reasonably developed; nonconforming existing structures can be properly maintained or repaired; ~~and~~ nonconforming uses can continue to be changed to other less nonconforming or to conforming uses; and nonconforming (as to use) single-family residential dwelling units can create Accessory Dwelling Units subject to the performance standards in Article VI of this ordinance. When

nonconforming uses fall into disuse, the intent of these regulations is not to allow them to be reestablished after a twelve-month period of dormancy. These regulations are designed for the betterment of the community and for the improvement of property values.

Section 3. Nonconforming use.

B. A structure nonconforming as to use.

1. A building or structure, nonconforming as to use, shall not be enlarged unless the nonconforming use is terminated, and otherwise meets the provisions of this ordinance. This does not apply to Accessory Dwelling Units which may be created in accordance with the performance standards in Article VI of this ordinance.
2. A nonconforming use of part of a building or structure shall not be extended throughout other parts of the building or structure unless those parts of the building or structure were manifestly arranged or designed for such use prior to the adoption of this ordinance, or of any amendment making such use nonconforming. This shall not apply Accessory Dwelling Units which may be created in accordance with the performance standards in Article VI of this Ordinance.
3. Accessory Dwelling Units on parcels containing a single non-conforming (as to use) dwelling unit, which was in existence as of January 1, 2017, that are created in accordance with the performance standards in Article VI of this ordinance shall not be considered the expansion or creation of a non-conforming use.

Part III (Land Development Regulations), Article II (Definitions), be amended as follows:

ACCESSORY DWELLING UNIT - An Accessory Dwelling Unit (ADU) is a self-contained housing unit incorporated within a single-family dwelling, attached to a single-family dwelling, or in a separate building on the same lot as a single-family dwelling home.

PRIMARY RESIDENCE - A building in which is conducted the principal use of the lot on which it is located. For residentially ~~zoned~~ lots, such a building would be a dwelling.

Part III (Land Development Regulations), Article VI (Performance Standards), Section 77 (Accessory Dwelling Units (ADUs)), be amended as follows:

A. Procedural Requirements.

1. Review procedure:
 - a. One ADU is permitted per residentially zoned parcel (see Article V, Table A, Table of Land Uses), except-within the Coastal Residential (CR) zone, including the RP and LR overlay districts within the CR zone, where ADUs are not permitted. ADUs are also permitted on non-residentially zoned parcels containing a single non-conforming (as to use) dwelling unit which was in existence as of January 1, 2017. A permit for an ADU may be issued by the Code Enforcement Office so long as all of the standards in this section are met.

Motion by Councilor Ready, seconded by Councilor Lessard to grant the first reading of the ordinance amendment.

Vote: Unanimous.

2017.58

IN BOARD OF CITY COUNCIL..JUNE 6, 2017

BE IT ORDAINED, by the City Council of the City of Biddeford that the Code of Ordinances, Chapter 42, Motor Vehicles and Traffic, Article IV Specific Street Regulations, **Section 42-90 No Parking**, is amended by adding or ~~deleting~~ to read as follows:

Dartmouth Street, even-numbered side, from the intersection with Elm Street thence westerly to the intersection with May Street.

NOTE: The Policy Committee considered this amendment at their May 22, 2017 meeting and voted unanimously to forward to the City Council with a recommendation for adoption.

Motion by Councilor Ready, seconded by Councilor Lessard to grant the first reading of the ordinance amendment.

Vote: Unanimous.

2017.59

IN BOARD OF CITY COUNCIL..JUNE 6, 2017

BE IT ORDAINED, by the City Council of the City of Biddeford that the Code of Ordinances, Chapter 42, Motor Vehicles and Traffic, Article IV Specific Street Regulations, **Section 42-90 No Parking**, is amended by adding or ~~deleting~~ to read as follows:

Round Hill Street, odd-numbered side, from the intersection with May Street thence northeasterly to the intersection with Dartmouth Street.

NOTE: The Policy Committee considered this amendment at their May 22, 2017 meeting and voted unanimously to forward to the City Council with a recommendation for adoption.

Motion by Councilor Ready, seconded by Councilor Lessard to grant the first reading of the ordinance amendment.

Vote: Unanimous.

2017.60

IN BOARD OF CITY COUNCIL..JUNE 6, 2017

BE IT ORDAINED, by the City Council of the City of Biddeford that the Code of Ordinances, Chapter 42, Motor Vehicles and Traffic, Article IV Specific Street Regulations, **Section 42-92 Limited Parking**, is amended by adding or ~~deleting~~ to read as follows:

Yates Street, odd-numbered side, beginning at a point 552 feet northwest from the intersection with Mile Stretch Road thence northwesterly to CMP utility pole CMP 9 (entrance to Biddeford Pool Yacht Club), three (3) hours between the hours of 8:00 a.m. and 4:00 p.m. from June 15 to Labor Day of each year.

NOTE: The Policy Committee considered this amendment at their May 22, 2017 meeting and voted unanimously to forward to the City Council with a recommendation for adoption.

Motion by Councilor Ready, seconded by Councilor Lessard to grant the first reading of the ordinance amendment.

Vote: 6/2; Councilors McCurry and Lessard opposed.

Councilors Swanton, St. Cyr, Quattrone, Mills, Ready and Seaver in favor.

Motion carries.

2017.61

IN BOARD OF CITY COUNCIL..JUNE 6, 2017

BE IT ORDAINED, by the City Council of the City of Biddeford that the Code of Ordinances, Chapter 42, Motor Vehicles and Traffic, Article IV Specific Street Regulations, **Section 42-99 No through trucks**, is amended by adding or ~~deleting~~ to read as follows:

Sec. 42-99 **No through trucks.**

(a) One-and one half-ton and over.

There shall be no through trucks over one and one half (1 ½) ton in size on the following streets:

Diamond Street, no trucks greater than one and one-half ton (~~gvw~~); local deliveries only

Stone Street, no trucks greater than one and one-half ton (~~gvw~~); local deliveries only

Summer Street, signs to be placed at Summer Street and Harrison Street and Summer Street and Birch Street

(b) Five tons and over.

There shall be no through trucks over five tons gross vehicle weight on the following streets:

Edwards Avenue

Graham Street, any part between Crescent Street and Alfred Streets

Grayson Street, any part between Elm Street and ~~Marcel Avenue~~ Hill Street

Janelle Street

Maple Avenue, any part

May Street, any part

NOTE: The Policy Committee considered this amendment at their May 22, 2017 meeting and voted unanimously to forward to the City Council with a recommendation for adoption.

Motion by Councilor Ready, seconded by Councilor Lessard to grant the first reading of the ordinance amendment.

Motion by Councilor Ready, seconded by Councilor Seaver to amend the ordinance by changing (a) to **One and one half ton and over**.

Vote: Unanimous.

Motion by Councilor Swanton, seconded by Councilor Lessard to remove the references to (grvw).

Vote: Unanimous.

Vote on first reading, as amended: Unanimous.

2017.62 IN BOARD OF CITY COUNCIL... JUNE 6, 2017

BE IT ORDERED, that City Manager, James Bennett's appointment of ***Cheryl Fournier*** as Finance Director for the City of Biddeford, be confirmed.

Motion by Councilor McCurry, seconded by Councilor Lessard to confirm the appointment.

Motion by Councilor McCurry, seconded by Councilor Ready to move into Executive Session, per 1MRSA 405(6)(A) – Personnel Matter.

Vote: Unanimous.

Time: 6:41 p.m.

Motion by Councilor McCurry, seconded by Councilor Swanton to move out of Executive Session.

Vote: Unanimous.

Time: 6:55 p.m.

Vote on appointment: Unanimous.

2017.63 IN BOARD OF CITY COUNCIL...JUNE 6, 2017

WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Biddeford requires all departments to maintain a balanced budget; and

WHEREAS, the practices, policies, and procedures of the Community TV Program are under review as part of the Plan; and

WHEREAS, Article XI, Sec. 3, of the City Charter allows for the transfer of funds between accounts provided the resolution authorizing the transfer is adopted by a 2/3 vote of the members present and voting and the vote is recorded.

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, that the City Council of the City of Biddeford hereby authorizes the City Manager to direct transfer of a sum equivalent to the payoff of the Community TV construction loan held by Saco & Biddeford Savings Bank minus the project end-of-year FY2017 budget surplus, from the *Community TV Fund* account (12183-30500) to the *Community TV Use of Fund Balance* account (31138-41199).

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the City Council of the City of Biddeford authorizes the City Manager to use the transferred funds and estimates end-of-year savings to pay off the Community TV construction loan held by Saco & Biddeford Savings Bank in the amount of approximately \$45,847.50, with the exact amount to be determined at the time of pay off to account for daily interest accruals.

NOTE: This order needs a 2/3rds vote for approval, due to the fact that it's a transfer of funds

from one account to another.

Motion by Councilor McCurry, seconded by Councilor Mills to grant the order.
Vote: Unanimous.

2017.44

IN BOARD OF CITY COUNCIL...MAY 2, 2017

BE IT ORDERED, that the City Council of the City of Biddeford does hereby set the date, time and place for a General Meeting of the citizens, as per the petition filed with and certified by the City Clerk on April 25, 2017.

We the undersigned, duly registered voters of the City of Biddeford, qualified to vote at a General Election, in accordance with the Charter of the City of Biddeford, do hereby call for a meeting of the citizens to address concerns of taxation without representation. Topics including, but not limited to, neglect of Waterhouse Field and overzealous spending downtown are to be discussed and addressed at this meeting.

This meeting will be held in accordance to the rules of the City Charter. A moderator will be chosen by majority vote of the citizens attending the meeting.

Per the **City Charter, ART. XII – Miscellaneous Provisions**

Sec. 4. General meetings of citizens.

General meetings of the citizens qualified to vote in the City affairs may from time to time be held to consult upon the public good, to instruct their representatives, and to take all lawful measures to obtain redress of any grievances according to the right secured to the people by the Constitution of this State; and such meetings may and shall be duly warned by the City Council, upon the requisition of 100 qualified voters of said City. A moderator shall be selected by majority vote of the citizens attending the meeting.

Motion by Councilor Ready, seconded by Councilor McCurry to remove the order from the table.
Vote: 7/1; Councilor Lessard opposed.

Councilors Swanton, McCurry, St. Cyr, Quattrone, Mills, Ready and Seaver in favor.
Motion carries.

Motion by Councilor McCurry, seconded by Councilor Ready to set a General Meeting of Citizens for Monday, June 19th, 2017 from 6:00 p.m. to 8:00 p.m. in the Council Chambers.
Vote: Unanimous.

REVISED VERSION, WITH THE POLICY COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATIONS

2017.56

IN BOARD OF CITY COUNCIL..MAY 16, 2017

BE IT ORDAINED, that the City Council of the City of Biddeford does hereby adopt the following Code of Ethics for all Elected and Appointed City Officials; to be included in the Code of Ordinances, **Chapter 2, Administration, Article I, Sec. 2-3 – CODE OF ETHICS**, as follows:

Ch. 2 – Administration, Article I – In General

Sec. 2-3 – Code of Ethics

There shall be a Code of Ethics for all Elected and Appointed Officials in and for the City of Biddeford:

- Officials shall view service to the City as an opportunity to serve the public, state and nation as the best means to promote the City of Biddeford and its citizens. We are working to make Biddeford the best place to live, work and do business.
- ~~Officials shall not make disparaging remarks about other City Officials or their opinions.~~
- Officials must maintain a courteous tone, especially in reference to any divergence of opinion and shall avoid injecting any personal note into discussions or debate. Officials must never attack or make any allusion to the motives of another Official.
- Officials shall remember at all times that ~~as an individual~~, they have no legal authority within the City outside the scope of their position, and ~~will~~ shall conduct their relationships with the City of Biddeford staff, the local citizenry, and all media communications in recognition of their authority. ~~on the basis of this fact.~~

- ~~Officials shall recognize that their responsibility is not to operate the City, but to see that the City is well operated.~~
- Officials shall not interfere with the daily administration of City business.
- ~~Officials shall listen to all citizens but will refer all complaints to the proper authorities and will discuss such complaints only at a regular meeting after failure of an administrative solution.~~
- Officials shall listen to all citizens and shall refer all complaints or concerns to the proper authorities.
- ~~Officials shall graciously support a decision once it has been made by a majority of the Council/Committee.~~
- Officials shall not criticize City employees publicly, but shall make such comments to the City Manager for investigation and action, if necessary.
- Officials shall make decisions only after all facts bearing on a question have been presented and discussed.
- ~~Officials shall refuse to make promises as to how they will vote on a matter which should properly come before the Council/Committee as a whole.~~
- ~~Officials shall not discuss the confidential business of the Council/Committee in their home, on the street or in their workplace; the place for such discussion is at the Council/Committee meetings.~~
- Officials shall not disclose the confidential business of the City to unauthorized persons.
- ~~Officials shall confine their Council/Committee action to policy making, planning or appraisal; leaving the administration of the City to the City Manager.~~
- ~~Officials shall endeavor at all times to see that the City has adequate financial support within the capabilities of the community and state, in order that every citizen may receive the best possible service.~~
- ~~Officials shall resist every temptation and outside pressure to use their position as a City Official to benefit themselves or any other individual or agency apart from the total interest of the City.~~
- No Official shall be permitted to vote on any question when his or her private rights or interests, distinct from public interest, is immediately involved.
- ~~Officials shall attempt to attend all meetings of the Council/Committee and, if it should become necessary to miss more than three (3) consecutive regular meetings of the Council/Committee or twenty five percent (25%) of all meetings within any six (6) month period, will meet with the Chair of the Council/Committee and explain the nature of the reason for the absence.~~
- Officials shall take notice of the date and time that meetings at which their attendance is expected are scheduled and shall punctually attend all meetings unless for good cause they are unavailable.
- ~~Officials shall abstain from individual action on those matters rightfully the authority of the Council/Committee.~~

Motion by Councilor McCurry, seconded by Councilor Mills to remove the item from the table.
 Vote: 7/1; Councilor Lessard opposed.
 Councilors Swanton, McCurry, St. Cyr, Quattrone, Mills, Ready and Seaver in favor.
 Motion carries.

Motion by Councilor McCurry, seconded by Councilor Seaver to grant the first reading of the ordinance amendment, as revised and recommended by the Policy Committee.
 Vote: 7/1; Councilor Ready opposed.
 Councilors Swanton, McCurry, St. Cyr, Quattrone, Mills, Seaver and Lessard in favor.
 Motion carries.

2017.64

IN BOARD OF CITY COUNCIL..JUNE 6, 2017

BE IT ORDERED, that the City Council of the City of Biddeford does hereby accept the resignation of Bob Mills as the Councilor representing Ward 5.

Motion by Councilor Ready, seconded by Councilor McCurry to accept the resignation, which is to be effective immediately.

Vote: Unanimous.

2017.65

IN BOARD OF CITY COUNCIL..JUNE 6, 2017

ORDERED, that I, Alan M. Casavant, Mayor of the City of Biddeford, do hereby appoint:

**Victoria Foley
26 Mason Street**

as **City Councilor for Ward 5**, replacing Bob Mills, for the remainder of the current term, which will expire in December 2017.

BE IT FURTHER ORDERED, that Councilor Foley will replace former Councilor Bob Mills on the Capital Projects Committee.

Motion by Councilor McCurry, seconded by Councilor Ready to confirm the appointment.

Vote: Unanimous.

Appointments:

IN BOARD OF CITY COUNCIL..JUNE 6, 2017

ORDERED, that I, Alan M. Casavant, Mayor of the City of Biddeford, do hereby appoint:

**Bob Mills
10 Windsor Lane**

to the *Board of Assessment Review*, with a term to expire December 2022.

Motion by Councilor Lessard, seconded by Councilor Quattrone to confirm the appointment.

Vote: Unanimous.

IN BOARD OF CITY COUNCIL..JUNE 6, 2017

ORDERED, that I, Alan M. Casavant, Mayor of the City of Biddeford, do hereby appoint:

**Bob Mills
10 Windsor Lane**

to the *Wastewater Management Commission*, with a term to expire December 2020.

Motion by Councilor Lessard, seconded by Councilor McCurry to confirm the appointment.

Vote: Unanimous.

IN BOARD OF CITY COUNCIL..JUNE 6, 2017

ORDERED, that I, Alan M. Casavant, Mayor of the City of Biddeford, do hereby appoint:

**Bob Mills
10 Windsor Lane**

to the *Zoning Board of Appeals*, with a term to expire December 2020.

Motion by Councilor Lessard, seconded by Councilor Seaver to confirm the appointment.

Vote: Unanimous.

City Manager Report:

City Manager, James Bennett gave a brief explanation on the current status of the State budget for fiscal year 2018. He noted that the City will not commit taxes for the next fiscal year until after the State budget has been passed.

Public Addressing the Council..(3 minute limit per speaker; 30 minute total time limit):
There were no public comments.

Other Business:

Councilor Ready: reminded folks of the upcoming School Budget Validation Referendum and Special State Referendum Election on Tuesday, June 13th. The poll will be open from 7:00am to 8:00pm at the Tiger Gym at Biddeford High School.

Councilor Ready also informed folks that on Monday, June 12th the Policy Committee will be meeting at 6:30pm in the Council Chambers, and will be discussing a proposed ordinance for Delivery of Unsolicited Items.

Councilor Swanton: asked about the ballots for next week's election. City Clerk, Carmen Morris explained that there is a State ballot that includes on Bond Referendum question; and the City ballot that includes the validation of the School Budget.

Councilor McCurry: stated that he'd still like the City to look into the issue of marijuana growers living in multi-unit buildings and the dangers around that due to the electricity load used to grow marijuana. He has spoken with Roby Fecteau, the Code Enforcement Officer and is hoping to come up with some direction in the near future.

Council President Addressing the Council: Councilor McCurry offer congratulations to all the recently graduated Biddeford High School Graduates. He also offered congratulations to those who will be graduating from the Adult Education program.

Councilor McCurry noted that the petitioned-for General Meeting of Citizens has been scheduled; however, he had hoped that citizens would have come out to speak on the issues of concern prior to now – like during the Waterhouse Field meetings, School Committee meetings and during the budget public hearing and meetings.

Councilor McCurry thanked City Staff, the City Attorney and his fellow Councilors for all the hard work that is done day in and day out.

Mayor Addressing the Council: Mayor Casavant congratulated the City Council on finishing and passing the FY18 budget by the June 30th deadline, all while maintaining a professional manner. He is proud that the Council truly does work for what's best for the community, no matter what personal views may be. He commended the Council for the tough decisions they made during the budget process, and is confident they will deal with upcoming tough decisions with the same professionalism and with the City's best interest in mind.

Motion by Councilor McCurry, seconded by Councilor Lessard to adjourn.
Vote: Unanimous.

Time: 7:22 p.m.

Attest by: _____
Carmen J. Morris, City Clerk